

# **Navigator Schools**

# **Board Meeting**

# Date and Time

Tuesday January 10, 2023 at 4:30 PM PST

This meeting will take place via teleconference pursuant to Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20.

The Board of Directors and employees of Navigator Schools shall meet via Zoom. Members of the public who wish to access this board meeting may do so online at <u>https://zoom.us/join</u> or via telephone by calling (<u>669) 900-</u> <u>6833</u> or (<u>646) 876-9923</u>. The meeting ID is: **988 0704 9837**. The meeting passcode is: **955356**.

Members of the public attending online who wish to comment during the board meeting will use the online "raise hand" tool in Zoom when the chairperson elicits public comments. Members of the public planning to attend by phone are requested to confirm their intent to comment up to one hour prior to the meeting via <u>e-mail</u>.

Individual comments will be limited to three minutes. If an interpreter is needed, comments will be translated into English and the time limit shall be six minutes. At its discretion, the board may limit the total time allotted to public comments and set new time limits for individual comments. The board reserves the right to mute and remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the meeting.

Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this public meeting should be submitted forty-eight hours prior to the meeting via <u>e-mail</u>. All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations. The agenda and public documents will be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Esta reunión se celebrará por teleconferencia de conformidad con las Órdenes Ejecutivas N-25-20 y N-29-20.

El Consejo de Administración y los empleados de Navigator Schools se reunirán a través de Zoom. Los miembros del público que deseen acceder a esta reunión del consejo pueden hacerlo en línea en

https://zoom.us/join o por teléfono llamando al (669) 900-6833 o al (646) 876-9923. El número de identificación de la reunión es: **988 0704 9837**. El código de acceso a la reunión es: **955356**.

Los miembros del público que asistan por Internet y deseen hacer comentarios durante la reunión de la junta directiva utilizarán la herramienta "levantar la mano" en Zoom cuando el presidente solicite los comentarios del público. Los miembros del público que tengan previsto asistir por teléfono deberán confirmar su intención de hacer comentarios una hora antes de la reunión por <u>correo electrónico</u>.

Los comentarios individuales se limitarán a tres minutos. Si se necesita un intérprete, los comentarios se traducirán al inglés y el límite de tiempo será de seis minutos. A su discreción, la mesa directiva puede limitar el tiempo total asignado a los comentarios del público y establecer nuevos límites de tiempo para los comentarios individuales. La mesa directiva se reserva el derecho de silenciar y expulsar a un participante de la reunión si éste interrumpe injustificadamente la reunión.

Las solicitudes de modificaciones o adaptaciones relacionadas con una discapacidad para participar en esta reunión pública deberán presentarse cuarenta y ocho horas antes de la reunión por <u>correo electrónico</u>. Se hará todo lo posible por realizar adaptaciones razonables. El orden del día y los documentos públicos se modificarán si se solicita, tal y como exige el artículo 202 de la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades.

#### Agenda

			Purpose	Presenter	Time
I.	-	ening Items			4:30 PM
	Opening Items				
	Α.	Record Attendance and Guests		Board Chair	1 m
		The chairperson will direct S. Martin to confirm atte	endance via roll	call.	
	В.	Call the Meeting to Order		Board Chair	1 m
	C.	Public Comments		Board Chair	2 m
		The board will receive public comments regarding expectations and time limits reviewed by the chair	Ū.	ns, if any, following	
	D.	Board Chair's Opening Remarks		Board Chair	5 m
		The chairperson will provide introductory remarks.			
	E.	Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting	Approve Minutes	Board Chair	1 m

			Purpose	Presenter	Time
		Members will vote on the approval of minutes from 2022.		ing on October 25,	
		Approve minutes for Board Meeting on December	13, 2022		
II.	Тор	bical Items			4:40 PM
	Α.	Resolution Renewing the Authorization to Continue Virtual Meetings	Vote	Board Chair	3 m
		Members will vote on the approval of Board Resolution 2023-11: Resolution Recognizing a State of Emergency and Re-Authorizing Teleconferenced Meetings Pursuant to AB 361.			
	В.	Watsonville Family YMCA MOU	Vote	Kirsten Carr	5 m
		The board review and vote on the approval of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Watsonville Family YMCA concerning the provision of after-school and intersession student programs.			
III.	Clo	sing Items			4:48 PM
	Α.	Adjourn Meeting	Vote	Board Chair	2 m

Board members will vote to adjourn the meeting. Votes will be recorded via roll call.

# Coversheet

# Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting

Section:I. Opening ItemsItem:E. Approve Minutes from Previous MeetingPurpose:Approve MinutesSubmitted by:Minutes for Board Meeting on December 13, 2022



# **Navigator Schools**

# Minutes

**Board Meeting** 

# **Date and Time**

APPROVED

Tuesday December 13, 2022 at 6:00 PM

This meeting will take place via teleconference pursuant to Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20.

The Board of Directors and employees of Navigator Schools shall meet via Zoom. Members of the public who wish to access this board meeting may do so online at <u>https://zoom.us/join</u> or via telephone by calling (669) 900-6833 or (646) 876-9923. The meeting ID is: **918 4081 8076**. The meeting passcode is: **861255**.

Members of the public attending online who wish to comment during the board meeting will use the online "raise hand" tool in Zoom when the chairperson elicits public comments. Members of the public planning to attend by phone are requested to confirm their intent to comment up to one hour prior to the meeting via <u>e-mail</u>.

Individual comments will be limited to three minutes. If an interpreter is needed, comments will be translated into English and the time limit shall be six minutes. At its discretion, the board may limit the total time allotted to public comments and set new time limits for individual comments. The board reserves the right to mute and remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the meeting.

Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this public meeting should be submitted forty-eight hours prior to the meeting via <u>e-mail</u>. All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations. The agenda and public documents will be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Esta reunión se celebrará por teleconferencia de conformidad con las Órdenes Ejecutivas N-25-20 y N-29-20.

El Consejo de Administración y los empleados de Navigator Schools se reunirán a través de Zoom. Los miembros del público que deseen acceder a esta reunión del consejo pueden hacerlo en línea en <u>https://zoom.us/join</u> o por teléfono llamando al (669) 900-6833 o al (646) 876-9923. El número de identificación de la reunión es: **918 4081 8076**. El código de acceso a la reunión es: **861255**.

Los miembros del público que asistan por Internet y deseen hacer comentarios durante la reunión de la junta directiva utilizarán la herramienta "levantar la mano" en Zoom cuando el presidente solicite los comentarios del público. Los miembros del público que tengan previsto asistir por teléfono deberán confirmar su intención de hacer comentarios una hora antes de la reunión por correo electrónico.

Los comentarios individuales se limitarán a tres minutos. Si se necesita un intérprete, los comentarios se traducirán al inglés y el límite de tiempo será de seis minutos. A su discreción, la mesa directiva puede limitar el tiempo total asignado a los comentarios del público y establecer nuevos límites de tiempo para los comentarios individuales. La mesa directiva se reserva el derecho de silenciar y expulsar a un participante de la reunión si éste interrumpe injustificadamente la reunión.

Las solicitudes de modificaciones o adaptaciones relacionadas con una discapacidad para participar en esta reunión pública deberán presentarse cuarenta y ocho horas antes de la reunión por <u>correo electrónico</u>. Se hará todo lo posible por realizar adaptaciones razonables. El orden del día y los documentos públicos se modificarán si se solicita, tal y como exige el artículo 202 de la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades.

#### **Directors Present**

Chuck Daggs (remote), Ian Connell (remote), JP Anderson (remote), Jaime Quiroga (remote), John Flaherty (remote), Victor Paredes-Colonia (remote)

#### **Directors Absent**

Alfred Morikang, Claire Grissom, Shara Hegde

Guests Present Sean Martin (remote)

#### I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

List of attending board members by full name: Chuck Daggs, Ian Connell, JP Anderson, Jaime Quiroga, John Flaherty, and Victor Paredes-Colonia

#### B. Call the Meeting to Order

John Flaherty called a meeting of the board of directors of Navigator Schools to order on Tuesday Dec 13, 2022 at 6:05 PM.

#### C. Public Comments

There were no public comments.

#### D. Board Chair's Opening Remarks

The chair waived opening remarks.

#### E. Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting

Ian Connell made a motion to approve the minutes from Board Meeting on 11-15-22. Jaime Quiroga seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

## Roll Call

Chuck Daggs	Aye
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
JP Anderson	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Claire Grissom	Absent
lan Connell	Aye
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye
John Flaherty	Aye
Alfred Morikang	Absent

#### F. Approve Minutes from the Special Meeting of the Board

Chuck Daggs made a motion to approve the minutes from Special Meeting: Board Onboarding/Re-Boarding Study Session on 09-17-22. John Flaherty seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

#### **Roll Call**

Chuck Daggs	Aye
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye
lan Connell	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Alfred Morikang	Absent
John Flaherty	Aye
Claire Grissom	Absent
JP Anderson	Aye

Roll Call Jaime Quiroga Aye

#### G. Approve Minutes from the Special Meeting of the Board

Jaime Quiroga made a motion to approve the minutes from Special Board Meeting on 09-16-22.

Chuck Daggs seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Claire Grissom	Absent
Chuck Daggs	Aye
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye
JP Anderson	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Alfred Morikang	Absent
John Flaherty	Aye
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
lan Connell	Aye

#### H. Approve Minutes from the Board Onboarding/Re-Boarding Study Session

Victor Paredes-Colonia made a motion to approve the minutes from Board Onboarding/Re-Boarding Study Session on 09-16-22. Ian Connell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Claire Grissom	Absent
Alfred Morikang	Absent
John Flaherty	Aye
JP Anderson	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
lan Connell	Aye
Chuck Daggs	Aye
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye

#### I. Approve Minutes from the Regular Meeting of the Board

Chuck Daggs made a motion to approve the minutes from Board Meeting on 08-30-22. John Flaherty seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Victor Paredes-Colonia Aye Claire Grissom Absent Alfred Morikang Absent

Abstain
Aye
Aye
Absent
Aye
Aye

#### J. CEO Report

K. Sved reported news regarding Navigator Schools becoming a finalist for a SparkGrant. J. Dent and I. Connell provided further details about Spark Grants. C. Toriumiexplained benefits of the potential grant, internally and for external model dissemination.K. Carr provided an update on after school services provided by the Boys and Girls Club.

## **II. Topical Items**

## A. Resolution Renewing the Authorization to Continue Virtual Meetings

JP Anderson made a motion to approve the resolution.

Victor Paredes-Colonia seconded the motion.

The board chair shared reflections on a future timeline for returning to in-person meetings.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call	
JP Anderson	Aye
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Ian Connell	Aye
Alfred Morikang	Absent
Chuck Daggs	Aye
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
Claire Grissom	Absent
John Flaherty	Aye

# B. CEO Search Process Update

Raven Woods and Tandia Elijio, representing Leveled Talent, shared their professional backgrounds and led a presentation focusing on the phases and processes of a CEO search. The presenters posed questions to elicit insights from board and staff members about the background, expertise, and key skills of an ideal CEO candidate. R. Woods provided a chronological timeline for the search process.

#### C. Board Resolution 2023-09: Policy and Compliance Updates: HPS

K. Carr explained the development of resolutions pertaining to compliance requirements for Hollister Prep School and Watsonville Prep School, specifically relating to federal program monitoring, including related key policies and processes. Topics included Uniform Complaint Procedures, Title 1, Local Control and Accountability Plans, and family engagement compacts. She discussed related surveys, presented next steps, and elicited questions from the board.

Jaime Quiroga made a motion to approve BR 2023-09.

lan Connell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

JP Anderson	Aye
Ian Connell	Aye
Alfred Morikang	Absent
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
Chuck Daggs	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Claire Grissom	Absent
John Flaherty	Aye
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye

# D. Board Resolution 2023-10: Policy and Compliance Updates: WPS

JP Anderson made a motion to approve BR 2023-10.

Chuck Daggs seconded the motion.

The board voted on the approval of policy and compliance updates pertaining to Watsonville Prep School as presented in Board Resolution 2023-10. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Chuck Daggs	Aye
JP Anderson	Aye
John Flaherty	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
lan Connell	Aye
Claire Grissom	Absent
Alfred Morikang	Absent
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye

#### E. Independent Audit Extension: Hayward Collegiate

K. Sved, on behalf of A. Ortiz, explained the origins and purpose of the audit extension. John Flaherty made a motion to approve the audit extension for Hayward Collegiate. Victor Paredes-Colonia seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll CallClaire GrissomAbsentVictor Paredes-ColoniaAye

# Roll Call

Chuck Daggs	Aye
John Flaherty	Aye
Alfred Morikang	Absent
Ian Connell	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
JP Anderson	Aye

#### **III. Committee Updates**

#### A. Academic Success Committee Report

J. Dent, on behalf of C. Grissom, shared recent committee activities, including (1.) the review of annual state testing results for Navigator Schools by student group and (2.) current in-school and after-school intervention strategies across multiple sites and grade levels to improve student academic success.

## B. Ad Hoc Committee Report

J. Flaherty, committee chair, reviewed recent committee activities and key focus areas. These included the CEO search; personnel; key organizational metrics and compliance measures; external relations and communications; organizational culture; and a review of founding documents in consideration of potential material changes in concert with legal counsel.

#### **IV. Closed Session**

# A. Announcement and Vote to Enter Closed Session

Chuck Daggs made a motion to enter closed session. John Flaherty seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Jaime Quiroga	Aye
JP Anderson	Aye
John Flaherty	Aye
Claire Grissom	Absent
Chuck Daggs	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye
Alfred Morikang	Absent
Ian Connell	Aye

# **B.** Closed Session

#### Announcement of Action Taken During Closed Session

The board chair announced that no action was taken during closed session.

#### V. Closing Items

#### A. Adjourn Meeting

Chuck Daggs made a motion to adjourn. Ian Connell seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Chuck Daggs	Aye
lan Connell	Aye
JP Anderson	Aye
John Flaherty	Aye
Jaime Quiroga	Aye
Claire Grissom	Absent
Victor Paredes-Colonia	Aye
Shara Hegde	Absent
Alfred Morikang	Absent

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:33 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Sean Martin

# Coversheet

# Resolution Renewing the Authorization to Continue Virtual Meetings

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: II. Topical ItemsA. Resolution Renewing the Authorization to Continue Virtual MeetingsVote

BR 2023\_11 AB361 Renew.pdf

# **BOARD RESOLUTION 2023-11**

January 10, 2023

# RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING A STATE OF EMERGENCY AND RE-AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCED MEETINGS PURSUANT TO AB 361

The Navigator Schools Board of Directors met at its regularly scheduled board meeting on January 10, 2023, established a quorum, and considered the issues and matters as set forth below and in the associated resolution as follows.

**WHEREAS**, on March 4, 2020, the Governor issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and in accordance with Government Code section 8625;

**WHEREAS**, on March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 that suspended the teleconferencing rules set forth in the Brown Act (Government Code section 54950 et seq.), provided certain requirements were met and followed, thus enabling legislative bodies to meet remotely;

**WHEREAS**, on June 11, 2021, the Governor issued Executive Order N-08-21 that provided that the teleconferencing rules would remain suspended through September 30, 2021;

**WHEREAS**, on September 16, 2021, the Governor signed AB 361 authorizing a legislative body subject to the Brown Act to continue to meet remotely using teleconference without compliance with the Brown Act teleconference rules if certain conditions are followed including (1) initially the existence of a proclaimed state of emergency and (2) requirements or recommended measures from state or local officials to promote social distancing;

**WHEREAS,** on December 29, 2021, the Board of Directors of Navigator Schools met at its regularly scheduled board meeting and passed Resolution BR 2021-14 authorizing virtual board meetings pursuant to AB 361; and

**WHEREAS**, as of the date of this Resolution, the Proclamation of State of Emergency issued by the Governor on March 4, 2020, remains in place;

**WHEREAS,** Navigator Schools has an important interest in protecting the public health, safety, and welfare of those who participate in meetings of the various legislative bodies during COVID-19 and ensuring that all members of the public can participate safely in meetings of legislative bodies;

**NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED**, that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and fully incorporated into this Resolution by reference.

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that the Board of Directors of Navigator Schools considered the State of Emergency in the State of California at this special board meeting and finds that one continues to exist due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that the Board of Directors of Navigator Schools considered the circumstances of the State of Emergency and finds that COVID-19 continues to pose an imminent threat to the health and safety of the community and directly impacts the ability of the members to meet safely in person.

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, the Board of Directors of Navigator Schools considered the continued use of teleconferencing for all meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all other applicable provisions of the Brown Act and hereby authorizes such use.

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

**PASSED AND ADOPTED** by the Board of Directors of Navigator Schools at its regular meeting held on January 10, 2023, via teleconference per COVID-19 regulations.

The Board President or Secretary of the Corporation certifies the resolution was adopted at the dated meeting of the Board of Directors.

Signature of Board Secretary

Date

Name: Ian Connell

Title: Board Secretary

Navigator Schools, a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

# Coversheet

# Watsonville Family YMCA MOU

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: II. Topical Items B. Watsonville Family YMCA MOU Vote

YMCA Memo and MOU.pdf



Date: January 6, 20223 To: Board of Directors From: Kirsten Carr, Director of Engagement and Partnerships Subject: Extended Learning Opportunities Program and the Watsonville Family YMCA

#### **Background on Extended Learning Opportunities Program**

The Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELOP) provides funding for after school and summer school enrichment programs for transitional kindergarten through sixth grade. "Expanded learning" encompasses before school, after school, summer, or intersession learning programs that focus on developing the academic, social, emotional, and physical needs and interests of pupils through hands-on, engaging learning experiences. It is the intent of the legislature that expanded learning programs be pupil-centered, results driven, include community partners, and complement (but not replicate) learning activities in the regular school day and school year.

ELOP funding provided for 2020-21 was intended for planning purposes and could be carried forward to 2021-22. Funding for 2022-23 could be used for program planning or program implementation. Program implementation is mandated for the 2023-24 school year. ELOP funding allocations are listed below in Table 1 by school.

School	Carryover from 2021-22	2022-23	Total Funding for 2022-23					
GPS	148,545	438,885	587,430					
HC	51,564	194,658	246,222					
HPS	150,651	465,835	616,486					
WPS	225,005	685,589	910,594					

#### Table 1: ELOP Funding by School

ELOP requires students to have an opportunity for nine hours of programming. On school days, these nine hours are inclusive of the school day. In addition, the program must provide at least 30 days of inter-session programming with each day also being a minimum of nine hours. Intersession days can take place during the summer or other breaks, including spring break or winter break. The program must be free for eligible students based on economic status (free or reduced price lunch), foster youth designation, or housing insecurity as defined by the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. <u>Here</u> is the link to the CDE's ELOP webpage for more information.

In October 2022, the Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Boys and Girls Club to provide ELOP programming at Gilroy Prep and Hollister Prep. Those programs launched in December 2022. The Boys and Girls Club does not operate in Watsonville. Currently, Hayward Collegiate is providing after school programming through ELOP with Hayward Collegiate staff. Contracting out for Hayward Collegiate's ELOP program will be considered for 2023-24. Staff will provide an update on all ELOP programming at an upcoming board meeting.

#### Proposal from Watsonville Family YMCA

The YMCA has been providing basic after school care for students at WPS since it first opened in 2019 with approximately 25 students participating each year. With the opportunity to expand programming through ELOP, Parisa Foadian, ELOP Coordinator, reached out to the YMCA of the Central Coast to discuss the possibility of strengthening the services provided to WPS families. After a series of conversations, meetings, and the opportunity for Parisa and Kirsten to visit a current YMCA ELOP program at a local elementary school, the attached proposal and memorandum of understanding was developed for the YMCA to provide after school programming at Watsonville Prep School, starting January 30.

In addition to the after school program, the YMCA also proposes to meet the intersession ELOP program requirement by providing February break camp (February 20 to February 25), April break camp (April 3 to April 7), and summer camp (June 9 to June 30)

The current proposal is to serve 100 students at Watsonville Prep School. If the demand exceeds 100 students, the YMCA will be able to expand the services to meet the demand at the per student cost provided in the MOU. The proposed costs of the program are described in Table 2.

		Summer Program	Professional		
School	After School	and Intersession	Development Day	Total	
WPS	116,200	92,500	3,700	212,400	

#### Table 2: Program Costs, Watsonville Family YMCA

#### Analysis

The YMCA has significant expertise in providing after school and summer programming, and it is deeply familiar with ELOP program requirements. Additionally, the local YMCA is familiar with WPS students, staff, and families, helping to ensure a smooth transition to expanded programming.

#### Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board authorize the CEO to execute the attached Memorandum of Understanding between Navigator Schools and the Watsonville Family YMCA.

Attachments -Memorandum of Understanding

#### MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 2022-2023 EXPANDED LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES PROGRAM (ELOP) GRANT

By this agreement made and entered into on January 11, 2023 ("Effective Date") between NAVIGATOR SCHOOLS (hereinafter referred to as **NAVIGATOR**), and WATSONVILLE FAMILY YMCA (hereinafter referred to as **PROVIDER**), in consideration of their mutual covenants, the parties hereto agree as follows:

**A. TERM OF AGREEMENT:** The term of this Agreement shall commence on January 11, 2023 (the "Commencement Date") and shall expire on the date in which the final grant award amount is provided from California Department of Education to NAVIGATOR, unless extended or sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Regardless of the date of execution of this Agreement, this Agreement is effective as of the Commencement Date.

**B. DUTIES OF PROVIDER:** PROVIDER agrees to provide the following services, materials, and/or products:

#### Locations

PROVIDER will operate programs at the following location:

Watsonville Prep School 407 Main Street Watsonville, CA 95076

#### Hours of Operation

• PROVIDER will ensure that the Program will operate every regular school day during the regular school year for \_\_\_\_\_ days. The program hours are after school beginning immediately upon the conclusion of the regular school day until 6:00 p.m.

• **EXCEPTION**: PROVIDER is allowed to close up to three days for training purposes as allowed by California Department of Education (CDE) guidelines. Proper notification of at least three weeks in advance will be given to NAVIGATOR staff, students, and families.

#### **Early Release Policy**

• PROVIDER will use an agreed upon Early Release policy and apply it on a student-by-student basis. Although students may be released early based on the established policy, the program must remain open until 6:00 p.m.

#### **Program Elements**

• PROVIDER will ensure the safety of students through close supervision, proper training of staff, and communication with parents/families and school. The State requires a minimum staff to student ratio of 1:20 for students in grades 1-8, 1:15 for students in kindergarten; and 1:10 for students in transitional kindergarten. Enrollment for the program will be up to 100 students.

• The program will integrate with the regular school day and other extended learning opportunities while providing a safe physical and emotional environment, opportunities for relationship-building, and promotion of active student engagement through the following required elements:

o An educational literacy element, which includes tutoring and/or homework assistance designed to help students meet State standards in one or more of the following core academic subjects: language arts, mathematics, history and social science, science, or computer training.

o An educational enrichment element, which offers an array of additional services, programs, and activities that reinforce and complement the regular academic program of participating students to support positive youth development. Enrichment activities may be designed to enhance the core curriculum. Examples of such activities include, but are not limited to, fine arts education activities, recreational activities, science related activities, physical fitness activities, sports leagues, career-technical education, prevention activities, and special events. Other learning support opportunities may include service-learning and mentoring.

o When determining goals for the educational literacy and educational enrichment elements, PROVIDER will use research-based curricula and strategies that is aligned to California's Common Core State Standards (CCSS) as well as work collaboratively with the school principal to align the goals and needs of the specific school. NAVIGATOR has selected to report data on the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) assessments for the Statewide Evaluation.

• The program will offer a daily nutritious snack that meets the requirements of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) National School Lunch Program for meal supplements. PROVIDER will distribute snacks from NAVIGATOR's Child Nutrition Services and follow specific procedures regarding record keeping, disposing of unused snacks, and completing any necessary documentation.

## **Enrollment Process/Priority**

PROVIDER will work collaboratively with the school principals in using NAVIGATOR's established criteria and process for the enrollment of students. Students will be enrolled in the following order:
o First priority for enrollment is given to students who are identified in the NAVIGATOR's student information system and/or on the PROVIDER's application as homeless youth or in foster care at the time

they apply for enrollment into the Program.

o Second priority will be given to students who are identified in the NAVIGATOR's student information system as qualifying for free or reduced price lunch and as an English learner

o Third priority will be given to students who are identified in the NAVIGATOR's student information system as qualifying for free or reduced price lunch, but not English learners

o Fourth priority will be for English learners who do not qualify for free or reduced price lunch

• The school principals may decide to open enrollment to other students depending on individual cases with mitigating factors.

# Staffing/Hiring

• Minimum staff to student ratio is 1:20 for students in grades 1-8; a minimum staff to student ratio is 1:15 for kindergarten students; and a minimum staff to student ratio is 1:10 for transitional kindergarten students.

• PROVIDER will do its own hiring and training of such staff and work collaboratively with the site principals to align the goals and needs of the specific school.

# **Attendance/Behavior Management**

• PROVIDER will take daily attendance and check the school's Daily Attendance Report (provided by Office Manager). PROVIDER will call parents/families of any student who was present during the regular school day but absent from the Program. This will be a safety precaution to account for any student who may be opting to go elsewhere after school.

• PROVIDER will check the school site's Daily Attendance Report to see if a student was absent from the regular school day but chose to attend the Program. Students will not be allowed to attend after school if they miss the regular school day. The same guideline applies to students who have been suspended; they are not allowed to be on campus during or after school hours.

 PROVIDER will maintain an average daily attendance of 85% of the maximum total (e.g., 85 of 100 students).

• PROVIDER will be responsible for training its staff on behavior management and will work collaboratively with the school's staff and principal to align the behavior expectations. PROVIDER will be responsible for implementing behavior management steps and will communicate with the school's staff and principal any necessary concerns regarding specific students or families.

• PROVIDER will implement a specific process regarding consequences such as being dropped from the Program for students who are consistently absent or not following guidelines. Any such actions will be communicated to the school.

# **Data Collection & Reporting**

• PROVIDER will work collaboratively with NAVIGATOR to collect and report data, according to State requirements. This will include semi-annual attendance reports, quarterly expenditure reports; and annual fiscal and evaluation reports as well as evaluation of the effectiveness of programs. Due dates to NAVIGATOR are as follows:

#### semi-annual attendance reports;

• 10 business days before April 30, 2023, and 10 business days before July 31, 2023 for the **quarterly expenditure reports**;

• 40 business days (approximately 8 weeks) before October 15, 2023, for the **annual evaluation reports.** 

• PROVIDER will use the State's standardized procedures and collection tools developed by the CDE for evaluation purposes.

• PROVIDER will keep accurate attendance records and implement a record keeping procedure for the purpose of data reporting to the State, as well as backup documentation for the school site (e.g., principal and parents) and NAVIGATOR (e.g., audits). PROVIDER will submit an Excel file with daily attendance lists as well as a summary of attendance numbers according to the specified time line above.

• PROVIDER will keep financial and attendance records for five years and will provide access upon request. PROVIDER will submit the CDE Quarterly Report and the detailed Quarterly Expenditure Report to NAVIGATOR according to the specified time line above.

 PROVIDER will complete and return daily the snack production records to Child Nutrition Services.

#### **Program Effectiveness**

• PROVIDER will use the evaluation results to monitor and revise the program to meet the goals of the NAVIGATOR and school.

#### Facilities

• PROVIDER shall be responsible for lost, damaged or stolen property as a result of PROVIDER's use of NAVIGATOR property.

• PROVIDER shall ensure that any space being used is left in a tidy manner and ready to be cleaned by NAVIGATOR's Maintenance staff (e.g., picking up trash from the floors, putting away books, materials, supplies, stacking chairs on tables, etc.)

**C. NAVIGATOR CHARTER SCHOOLS OBLIGATIONS:** For the period of this agreement, NAVIGATOR shall provide the following:

#### **Enrollment Process/Priority**

• First priority for enrollment is given to students who are identified in NAVIGATOR's student information system and/or on the PROVIDER's application as homeless youth or in foster care at the time they apply for enrollment into the Program.

• NAVIGATOR will provide and/or cross-reference student information and assessment data to school and PROVIDER in order to facilitate the enrollment process and recruitment of students.

• NAVIGATOR will work collaboratively with PROVIDER to select students using the established criteria and to recruit students through various ways of communication (e.g., posting a sign, assisting to call families, including information in newsletter).

## **Attendance/Behavior Management**

• The school Office Manager will provide Daily Attendance Reports in PROVIDER's mailbox.

• The school staff and principals will work cooperatively with PROVIDER to ensure positive attendance and behavior management.

## **Data Collection & Reporting**

• NAVIGATOR will work collaboratively with PROVIDER to collect and report data, according to State requirements. This will include semi-annual attendance reports, quarterly expenditure reports; and annual fiscal and evaluation reports as well as evaluation of the effectiveness of programs.

• NAVIGATOR will use the State's standardized procedures and collection tools developed by the CDE for evaluation purposes.

# Program Effectiveness

• NAVIGATOR will share appropriate evaluation results with PROVIDER to facilitate the enhancement of the Program to align with NAVIGATOR and school goals.

• NAVIGATOR will include PROVIDER's staff in appropriate staff development (e.g., behavioral interventions, social-emotional wellness methods, language arts, math, etc.).

#### Facilities

• The physical locations where the Program is implemented will be designated as the program sites.

• NAVIGATOR will provide space as needed, to meet the attendance requirements as defined by the grant, such as classrooms, use of student restrooms, drinking fountains, playground facilities, and gym/multi-purpose rooms.

• NAVIGATOR will provide all water, electricity, lighting, heating, and trash removal service.

NAVIGATOR will provide janitorial services to the space provided in school buildings at a

minimum of three times per week (e.g., vacuum carpet, sweep and mop floors, wipe surfaces, clean bathrooms, and remove trash).

**D. COMPENSATION:** For the full performance of this agreement, NAVIGATOR shall pay PROVIDER \$212,400.

83 school program days for 100 students at \$14/student: \$116,200 25 intersession days for 100 students at \$185/student: \$92,500 1 professional development day for 100 students at \$37/student: \$3,700

#### **E. PAYMENT TERMS:** Payment to be made as follows:

NAVIGATOR shall pay PROVIDER in seven equal monthly installments beginning with the execution of this agreement. PROVIDER shall submit an invoice on the first day of each month to generate payment. Payment shall be paid within three business weeks of date of invoice.

#### Billing Address:

NAVIGATOR Schools Attn: Ami Ortiz, Director of Business and Finance Address: 650 San Benito Street, Suite 230 Hollister, CA 95023

**F. PERIOD OF MOU:** PROVIDER's work as specified in this agreement shall commence on January 11, 2023 and shall be completed on or before June 30, 2023.

G. INSURANCE: Reference General Terms and Conditions, G.2.

The evidence of insurance is attached.

#### H. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. INDEMNIFICATION: PROVIDER agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless NAVIGATOR, its directors, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any liability, claim, action, cost, damage or loss, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees, for injury, including death, to any person or damage to any property arising out of PROVIDER's activities under this memorandum of understanding, but excluding liability due to the sole negligence or willful conduct of NAVIGATOR. This obligation shall continue beyond the term of this agreement as to any act or omission which occurred during or under this agreement. This indemnification obligation is not limited in anyway by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for PROVIDER or its employees or agents under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefits acts.

2. INSURANCE: PROVIDER will maintain general liability insurance, automobile coverage, and workers compensation coverage in such an amount as set forth in Exhibit A herein to assure compliance with the Indemnification provision, herein above. NAVIGATOR shall be named as additional insured on an endorsement with respect to the liability coverage. PROVIDER agrees to provide Certificates of Insurance reflecting policies of insurance and NAVIGATOR'S additional insured status to NAVIGATOR prior to commencing any services.

3. NON-DISCRIMINATION: No discrimination shall be made in the employment of persons under this agreement because of the race, religion, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliations, disability, medical condition, marital status, or sexual orientation.

4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Before executing this agreement, PROVIDER shall disclose to NAVIGATOR the identities of any board member, officer, or employee of NAVIGATOR, or relatives thereof, who PROVIDER knows of should know will have any financial interest resulting from this agreement.

5. LICENSE AND AUTHORITY: PROVIDER will maintain all necessary licenses during the term of this agreement. If other than a natural person, PROVIDER is duly authorized to enter into this agreement by its governing or controlling body. Evidence or copies of all necessary licenses must accompany this agreement.

6. EQUIPMENT: PROVIDER will provide all necessary equipment to render his/her services pursuant to this agreement, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties.

7. USE OF ADDITIONAL WORKERS BY PROVIDER: PROVIDER may, at PROVIDER's own expense, employ additional workers or other PROVIDERs as necessary for the completion of this agreement and shall maintain workers' compensation insurance as required by state law. NAVIGATOR shall not control, direct, or supervise PROVIDER's additional workers or PROVIDERs in the performance of those services. PROVIDER assumes full and sole responsibility for the payment of all compensation and expenses of these additional workers or PROVIDERs and for all state and federal income tax, unemployment insurance, social security, disability insurance, and other applicable withholdings. PROVIDER shall not hire employees of NAVIGATOR for performance of this agreement.

8. ASSIGNMENT: Without the prior written consent of NAVIGATOR, this agreement is not assignable by PROVIDER.

9. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This agreement shall be binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

10. FINGERPRINTING AND CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: PROVIDER shall comply with the provisions of Education code section 45125.1 regarding the submission of employee fingerprints with the California Department of Justice and the completion of criminal background investigations of its employees. PROVIDER shall not permit any employees to have any contact with NAVIGATOR pupils until such time as PROVIDER has verified in writing to the governing board of NAVIGATOR that such employee has not been convicted of a felony as defined in Education code 45125.1. PROVIDER's responsibility shall extend to all employees, subcontractors and employees of subcontractors regardless of whether such individuals are paid or unpaid, concurrently employed by the NAVIGATOR and/or acting as independent PROVIDERs of PROVIDER. Verification of compliance with this section shall be provided in writing to NAVIGATOR prior to the commencement of participation in the agreed project and prior to contact with students.

11. HEALTH EXAMINATION: No person shall be initially allowed to interact with students unless he/she has placed on file with PROVIDER or NAVIGATOR a certificate from a physician licensed under the Business and professions Code indicating that a tuberculosis examination within the past 60 days shows that he/she is free from active tuberculosis. The tuberculosis examination shall consist of an approved intradermal tuberculin test. An X-ray of the lungs shall be required only if the intradermal test is positive. (Education Code 49406).

12. GOVERNING LAW: The validity of this agreement and any of its terms or provisions as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the state of California.

13. CHANGES OR ALTERATIONS: No changes, alterations, or variations of any kind to this agreement are authorized without the prior written consent of NAVIGATOR.

14. HEADINGS: All section headings contained herein are for clarification and convenience of reference only and are not intended to limit the scope of any provision of the agreement.

15. TERMINATION: Either party may terminate this agreement upon sixty days advance written notice. NAVIGATOR will be relieved of the payment of any consideration to the PROVIDER should PROVIDER fail to perform under this agreement or terminate agreement prior to the compensation date. In the event of such termination, NAVIGATOR may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by NAVIGATOR. The cost to NAVIGATOR shall be deducted from any sum due PROVIDER under this agreement.

16. SEVERABILITY: In the event any portion of this agreement shall be held by a Court to be invalid, such holding shall not invalidate the remainder of this agreement which shall remain in full force and effect.

17. AMBIGUITY: The language herein shall be construed as jointly proposed and jointly accepted, and in the event of any subsequent determination of ambiguity, all parties shall be treated as equally responsible for such ambiguity.

18. COPYRIGHT: Any written or electronic media product produced as a result of this contract shall be a work for hire and shall be the property of NAVIGATOR.

19. EXPENSES: PROVIDER will use the 85% of the grant's total for direct services to participants. PROVIDER will be responsible for administrative costs, all costs of equipment provided by PROVIDER, all fees, fines, licenses, bonds or taxes required of or imposed against PROVIDER, and all other of PROVIDER's costs of doing business. All contents and materials purchased through the Grant by either party is the property of NAVIGATOR.

20. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: This contract is by and between two independent contractors and is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association. In executing this agreement, PROVIDER certifies that no one who has or who will have any financial interest under this agreement is an officer or employee of NAVIGATOR. Additionally, as the Contractor/PROVIDER is not a NAVIGATOR employee, NAVIGATOR is not responsible for obtaining workers' compensation insurance coverage for the Contractor/PROVIDER.

**I. COMMUNICATIONS:** Communications between the parties to this Agreement may be sent to the following addresses:

#### NAVIGATOR

Navigator Schools Attn: Kevin Sved, CEO Address: 650 San Benito Street, Suite 230 Hollister, CA 95023 PROVIDER

Watsonville Family YMCA Attn: Robin Schneckenburger, Executive Director Address: 27 Sudden Street 95076 Watsonville, CA **J. UNDERSTANDING AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PARTIES:** This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties. PROVIDER's signatures below signify both an understanding and acceptance of the contract (MOU) provisions.

NAVIGATOR: NAVIGATOR SCHOOLS By: **PROVIDER**: Watsonville Family YMCA By:

Name: Kevin Sved Title: CEO Date: Name: Robin Schneckenburger Title: Executive Director Date: